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أمونت     عنخت توتت دفنت مكانت

المقدمتةتت
    , الملك           حياة قصة يلخص وهو مصر ملك بلوج مؤلف خلل من وتجميعه كتابته تم الكتاب هذا

 . ونسب   أمون عنخ ,     توت عن.      التحدث الي بالضافة النسب تؤكد التي الخيرة والنظريات
.   ,مقبرته أمون, ,      عنخ توت مقبرة كنوز وأيضا السرة    وإكتشافها البيوت  18وكانت أحد

وقت              كاتن أمون عنخ وتوت إخناتون عهد إشتمل القديمةوالذي مصر في القوية المالكة
. العلقة   .          العصر هذا في الملكية المومياوات عدد علي الخير التعرف وغامض إستثنائي

بين   العائلة   الصحيحة أعضاء بعض موضوعات       بين كان الوفاة وأسباب الممكنة والمراض المالكة
من.      حكم الذي أخناتون، أكثر   ,     1334-1351للمناقشة من واحدا أعتبر الميلد الفراعنة قبل

للجد المصريين  من           لالمثار كبير لعدد إستمر والذي التقليدي أجداده دين لتحويل محاولته بسبب
. أما ,            عظيمة إضطرابات في وتسبب المجتمع نواحي جميع على إنعكس والذي السنوات
وهذا               المصريين الفراعنة كل من شهرة الكثر الرجح على هو انه آمون، عنخ لتوت بالنسبة

التي                 مقبرته داخل عليها العثور تم التي الكنوز بسبب ولكن تاريخية أهمية مع علقة له ليس
إكتشافها   .سليمةتم

وأسمائ  هألقابه

: آمون            عنخ توت وأسماء ألقاب من ثلثة دراسة بصدد نحن
الميلد.  1 اسم

 .   .    . البديل      "   طيبة وتعني أون جنوب حاكم لمون الحية الصورة شمع إونو حقاع أمن عنخ توت
" :   "   " :   .    , سيد:    ومعناه ، رع خپرو نب ملكي اسم لتون الحية الصورة أتون عنخ توت السابق

" رع  : .أقانيم حورس   تم ,       kA-nxt tut-mswtإسم التي النماذج من تركيب القوي، الثور
"     " صورة " ولدة القوي، الثور أو إنشاؤها

تاريخية  خلفية
السرة         ملوك آخر من واحد آمون عنخ توت جدا .      ,18 وكان مبكرة سن في العرش إعتلي

    . على            اخناتون وخلف سنوات عشر أو تسع من يقرب ما وحكم سنوات تسع حوالي في
. البنة                 إسن عنخ توت الميرة من الزواج خلل من العرش في حقه تثبيت تم كما العرش،

والملكة    إخناتون للملك ).     الثالثة عاش  عهده، بداية في تل   في  نفرتيتي في الملكي القصر
 ( تحت (   فقط سنوات لثلث الملكية  العمارنة الملكية.     الممرضات مرضعته قبر اكتشاف تم

    .         . معا   الدروس يأخذوا كانوا إسن عنخ توت المستقبلية زوجته مع نشأ ربما سقارة في مؤخرا
     . بعد          مباشرة أو قبل سواء الجديد أتون دين حول تعليمات أعطوهم والكتبة المعلمين نفس من
  . أيضا              غادر آمون عبادة إلى وعاد خصوصاآي، آمون كهنة تأثير تحت وقع العرش، الملك إعتلء

كمرحلة       ممفيس إلي القصر نقل وتم م    إنتقالية  العمارنة، طيبة كانت أن بسبب  ليئةمنذ بالغضب
من      وأيضا الجديد آتون العمليات       ممفيس دين علي والسيطرة البعثات لتجهيز أسهل كان

آسيا   في .      الصغري العسكرية طيبة     إلي إنتقل لحق وقت في للحيثيين الصاعدة القوة ضد
وعاد                  آمون إسن عنخ إلي زوجته إسم وتغير آمون عنخ لتوت آتون عنخ توت من إسمة وغير

بعض              دفن طريق عن الملوك وادي في الحديثة المملكة لملوك الرئيسي الدفن مكان إلي
مقبرة       في العمارنة لتل الجنائزية الشخص        v 55الدوات أن تثبت والتي المقبرة ختم تم حيث
آمون         عنخ توت هو الودائع هذه بوضع قام عثر      . الذي والتي لوحةالستعادة، أقام أيضا طيبة في

العمدة    قاعة في عبادة            فيعليها إلى وعاد البلد، في الستقرار اعاد أنه عليه ذكر والتي الكرنك
أهملت      والتي اللهة من وغيرها الترميمات        آمون أعمال وأقام المعابد فتح وأعاد عهداخناتون في

مهرجانات ,    في شارك كما معبد         هناك أعمدة على موضح هو كما الوبت مهرجان مثل
اثنين.      هناك كان حكمه فترة خلل القوية   القصر الشخصيات :من

1.      , للغاية)      قوي عسكري ورجل للجيش قائد كان الذي حورمحب
2. آمون)      كهنة رئيس كان آي



كان           عندما وراءالكواليس من الحقيقة في البلد حكموا الذين الشخصين .كانوا خلل    طفل الملك
يدآي            في كانت مصر شئوون إدارة كانت أمون عنخ توت للحكومة   الذي عهد رئيسا كان

ووزيره.
زواج

       , والذي       أتون إسن عنخ إسمها كان لخناتون الثالثة ابنة من متزوجا من   كان تعيش أنها يعني
. أتون  .  أجل    . سن           في تزوجا الثورة حدوث بعد أمون إسن عنخ إلي زوجها مثل إسمها وغيرت

تتعلق    لسباب وربما للحصول   مبكرة، أحبوا       ,  بالدولة أنهم أو العرش إعتلء في الحق علي
بعضا  في ,             بعضهم وجدت التي الثرية القطع علي المشاهد بعض في والمودة المحبة عرض تم

الملكة    تقدم مثل . المقبرة ونحن         السهم بإعطائه يصطاد عندما مساعدته أو للملك الزهور أكاليل
    . النجاب         سن في كانت ربما أمون عنخ توت من أكبر إسن عنخ أن له    ,نعتقد تنجب لم لنها

      , لجنة       كحمل توفوا والذين النمو كاملي غير إناث أطفال بإستثناء .7و 6أطفال تم  أشهر
. المقبرة    في المومياوات خطاب            اكتشاف أرسلت ولذا أتباعه من الزواج ترد لم وفاته بعد

منه                تطلب الحيثين ملك إلي العمارنة خطابات علي المثلة من واحد بإعتباره تسجيله تم والذي
أمير   يرسل ماذا.            أن ليري المير أرسل ولكنه الغريب الطلب هذا من متأكد يكن لم ليتزوجها

,          .سيحدث قبل   من وربما مصر، إلي طريقه في وهو المير قتل تم الحظ حورمحب  لسوء أتباع
فعلها                ,وآي التي الشياء من واحدا كان آي من بالزواج أتون إسن عنخ بزواج المر آيانته

حقه   تمثيل           في لثبات كان العرش لعتلئه الشرعيه لضفاء به قام أخر وفعل العرش إعتلء
  . تم              وقد الفم فتح حفل إفتتاح بأداء أمون عنخ توت بمقبرة الدفن غرفة جدران علي نفسه

أو     الخليفة قبل من المتوفي  إبن  عادة الملك
نسب
:                أثار النص  أن نعلم ونحن ملك ابن كان آمون عنخ توت أن من يقين علي نحن على العمارنة

جسده                من للملك كإبن أمون عنخ توت وصف ، المدمرة إخناتون مباني أحد من اللهي، كتلة
       . مباني       أحد من جاءت الكتلة هذه ولكن الملك إسم تسجيل يتم لم للسف اخناتون ولكن

هو      , اخناتون أن فرضية يقوي .وهذا عام   والده  النظريات     2010قبل من العديد هناك كان ،
: أدناه         هذه تناقش وسوف آمون عنخ توت نسب حول

1. تاي-         والملكة الثالث أمنحتب ابن يكون قد انه
تفاق:إال

. البريطاني             المتحف في الن معروض السودان في السد تمثال اكتشاف النقوش تم تحمل
       . العتبار         في يوضع أن ينبغي ذلك، ومع الثالث أمنحتب ابن أمون عنخ توت بأن تزعم أن التي

أجدادهم        من والهتمام الحب من الكثير الحفاد " تلقي الب    " عليهم نطلق قد "و وأنها "، الم
  " يكون   " قد ابن كلمة فإن . وبالتالي جده        إلى آمون عنخ توت وحب إحترام من

الخلف: 
   " "      ( لمدة( البلد اخناتون حكم الثالث أمنحتب وفاة بعد عندما   18أ ولكن عنخ   عاما، توت أصبح

عمره     كان الملك .9آمون الممكن       غير فمن لذلك عمره، من
 ( سن( آمون        الملكة  ب عنخ توت ولدة وقت في سن    تاي وهو عاما الخمسين تجاوز

تماما   أن الشيخوخة آمون-         تلد  للمرأة عنخ توت بين معينة علقة هناك مؤمياء كان وبقايا
نعش     في عليها النسان  عثر عندما    KV 55في شبيه الحال هو فحصهم    كما تم عامفي كلهما

جامعة  1968 في         في العيوب ونفس الدم فصيلة نفس تمتلك كل هيكل عظام ليفربول،وجدناأن
الجمجمة.

ابن-          3 هو آمون عنخ توت أن هو احتمال الكثر ) نظرية )   " ؟" كيا من .أخناتون
التفاق:
 ( العمارنة:      منظر أ( في الملكية المقبرة في وجدنا فراش   منظر  العمارنة على سيدة مثل

وعندما   مقارنة  الموت، وبجانبها     أدب ملمحهاتم كيا، تكون المروحة  أنها المروحة حام حامل ل
وال  الم الملكية تحمل  ممرضة الرجح     لكية على كان الذي عنخ     الطفل توت الملك سيكون الذي
أمون.

   ( من( واحد الزوجة   " ألقاب ب كان "المحبوبة كيا للملك    كبير حد بسبب   ,إلى ذلك يكون قد
بعد    أنجبت أنها  ابنا )6له نفرتيتي  (  من كان   بنات كبير   كان الذي تقدير مصر  محل في

.القديمة
 ( العمارنة  ج( ) أثار سابقا (  .هي المذكورة قوي   دليل
( تحقيق  د( الذ     2010 أثبت إخناتون، ابن كان تأكد  أنه الجسم   ي يكون أن .KV 55 من  الن

            .( إلى(    حاجة في ونحن شيء، أي من يقين على نكن لم وبالتالي لحقا شرحه سيتم وهذا
الجديدة  أ        التكنولوجيا أمراض أي عن والبحث السرية العلقات ولتحديد

الموت
: وفاته     حول مختلفة نظريات هناك

رأسه         على قوية ضربة نتيجة توفي أنه نعتقد الخلفي       لن  كنا الجزء في كبير ثقب هناك كان
ولكن    جمجمته، آمون  لن  من عنخ عسكرية     ,  توت أنشطة بأي يقم هذه   لم تقبل الفكرة لم
. واسع   نطاق مرض         (علي السل من مات أنه أخرى نظرية هناك بعد , )صدري كان ولكن

 , الفكرة     هذه رفضت المؤمياء المخ،لن         فحص في ورم بسبب وفاته حول نظرية هناك كان أيضا
كان     دماغه حول ولكن   كبيراتجويف أيضا رفض  نسبيا، عام    . هذا في أجريت المقطعية الشعة



الستاذ       2005 بقيادة العلماء من مجموعة قبل كاملة     من مومياء على حواس ما كشف  زاهي
يلي:

الرأس-    1 في في    ثقب يتسبب لن   لم بأن      وفاته إستنتجوا المصريين وجد الثقبالعلماء
وفاته   ربما       بعد أو التحنيط سائل إدراج أجل عمال    من حاول قناع   عندما إزالة كارتر هوارد

بشدة   تسبب     ملتصق مما رأسه . (  في  من بواسطة    لصقه تم الصابة من النوع .هذا الراتنج 
2 .( وهذا-      ( الفخذ اليسرى ساقه في أخرى الرجح ساهم  إصابة وفاته   على حدث  ، في وهذا

مركبته           يقود كان عندما كبير إرتفاع من السقوط يصطاد   (بسبب كان الجرحإصيب ).بينما
الغرغرينا،      بالعدوي  تسبب مما صحيح بشكل تلتئم . ولم كان    وفاته إلى أدى 170 طوله  مما

سم.
عام    الخيرة :2010التحقيقات

فبراير   أجريت         2010في دراسة نتائج النووي   كشفت الحمض عنخ  على توت لعائلة
" أمون,    ,"    عنخ توت مشروع المشروع هذا سمي وقد سبتمبر     أمون من عامين لمدة واستمر ،

أكتوبر  2007 خلل.     2009حتى من الدراسة أجريت المصري  مشروع  وقد برئاسة المومياء
العام     المين حواس، زاهي للثار    الدكتور العلي يتألف   للمجلس وفريق المصريين  ، العلماء من

القومي من  كلية   المركز من المتخصصين       للبحوث،وأعضاء من واثنين القاهرة، جامعة في الطب
  . دراسة    تمت اللماني النووي الحمض ملكية    في مؤمياء عشر آمون     إحدي عنخ توت عائلة من

.      باستخدام من    المومياوات هذه وجاءت النووي الحمض وتكنولوجيا KV 35الشعة  ، 55،62
التأكد   . (Bو  21Aوكانت  :  من  فقطتم المومياوات     هذه هويات من ثلثة

     .( مختبرين        داخل الدراسة وأجريت توت مومياء إلى بالضافة الثالث، وأمنحتب تويا يويا،
إشراف      تحت هي التي النووي .       الحمض من   السفلي الطابق في يقع واحد للثار العلى المجلس

وآخر   القاهرة، .      متحف الحمض      مختبرات من فقط اثنين القاهرة جامعة في الطب كلية في
حصرا  .       النووي طريق     عن النتائج هذه نشرت وقد القديمة المومياوات دراسة إلى مجلة تهدف
JAMA     في الميركية، الطبية المجلد ( 2010طبعة فبراير  17الجمعية رقم  303، وخلصوا). 7،

: أن  علي  تم  إلى ك   التعرف وتويا وأمنحتب   ل أجداديويا آمون عنخ أمنحتب - ,الثالث توت
المسنة   KV 35 .الثالث ) السيدة ) KV 55ذكر   - كأجداده.تاي( الشابة اخناتون ( هيوالسيدة
ا شقيق علي    لباء.ه التعرف ك    أمنحتبيمكن واضح بشكل للذكر  الثالث إخناتون kv55والد

. سلبية        أمون عنخ لتوت كوالد الثالث إمنحوتب مومياء     لذا وفحص أن النتائج هو KV 55أظهرت
ابن

إلى         أدى مما آمون عنخ توت والد الثالث أن   أمنحتب تحديد  KV 55ذكر  افتراض هيمكن
ك  العجوز    خناتون. إبالتأكيد السيدة تحديد أن        وتم يمكن أنها إلى مشيرا وتويا ليويا كابنة سيدة

. تاي   ملكة تكون
تلخيص:لل
نسبه 1 :حول

تل             أشارت  في ولد الحقيقة في كان أنه إلى أشار فقد ذلك، ومع الخيرة، وقد.  الدلة العمارنة
كان          آمون عنخ توت والد أن عن النقاب كشف "       تم يكاد" الن هو الذي أخناتون، الملك زنديق

تحديده    المؤكد من من   مع يكون . KV 55المومياء الملوك    وادي إسم   في تحديد يتم لم
الشابة أمه،" الثاني   ( في تدفنالتي " السيدة أمنحتب السيدةمومياء).  "KV 35مقبرة
الملكة"              العجوز آمون، عنخ توت كجدة قاطع بشكل هويته عن الكشف الن يمكن القبر نفس من
تاي.

يتمكن   تحديد     لم من الن حتى آمون   إسم المشروع عنخ توت دراسات    ,أم أن من الرغم على
وتاي         الثالث ابنةأمنحتب كانت أنها أيضا تظهر النووي . وبالتالي  الحمض وهكذاأجداد  إخناتون أخت

آمون   عنخ كل  الوحيدين  توت على كان    الجانبين  ، والم، الب .وامن وتاي    الثالث أمنحتب
يتعلق  .2 زوجته:ب فيما

الجنة       من اثنين على العثور النمو   تم مكتملة في  ومحنطة غير بعيدا مخبأة
     . الولي     النووي الحمض تحليل يدعم آمون عنخ توت مقبرة المصريات    غرفة علماء انإعتقاد

أطفال   هم . هؤلء الشاب   أيضا    الملك التحليل اقترح بإسم   وقد المعروفة ،KV21Aالمومياء
الملكة   النثي احتمال      هوية والكثر تماما، معروفة تكن وبالتالي    لم الطفال، لهؤلء توت  أم زوجة
. آمون  .عنخ أمون           إسن عنخ المعروفة الوحيدة أمون عنخ توت زوجة أن وزوجته حيث ابنةإخناتون
المومياء        الرئيسية  لهذه الدراسة من مزيد ، نفرتيتي على سالملكة الضوء  يساعد كذلك إلقاء

هذ     داخل المعقدة العلقات .على السرة  ه
يتعلق  .3 وفاته:ب فيما

مع            آمون عنخ لتوت الوفاة سبب على جديد من الضوء تسليط الحمض   تم من  اكتشاف النووي
الملريا    تسبب التي المحتمل  الطفيليات عن      أن  من الناجمة المضاعفات من توفي الشاب الملك

من   حاد ) شكل     )   . واللم  الحمى لمكافحة عقاقير أي الطبية الغذائية المواد المرض التيهذا
داخل  من       تقبر ال وجدت يعاني الشاب الملك أن الفريق ادعاء . دعم الشديدة   بالملريا الصابة
الشعة  أن    كشفت أيضا له  المقطعية كان العظام      الملك نخر عن والناجمة عرجاء، الوعائية قدم

باسم(    يعرف مرض إلى            وهو يؤدي مما العظام من الدم إمدادات على يؤثر مما كوهلر، مرض
المصريات   ويدعم. 3العظام) نخر  الستنتاج   علماء عصي     من  هذا مائة من أكثر وجود خلل

للملك     للمشي , صور القبر .يؤدي في الجلوس      أثناء الصيد مثل بأن   النشطة المشروع يعتقد
نتيجة         الرجح على كان آمون عنخ توت الضعف  مقرونا  للملرياوفاة الشعة. بتكوين عموما

سابق      المقطعية وقت في أكدت في    للفرعون ملتئم غير كسر .وجود للملك     اليسر الفخذ عظم



الفريق   الضعيفة      يخمن الملك حالة إلى   أن أدت الحالة    سقوط،القد أضعف السقوط أن أو
. بالفعل   الهشة  الجسدية

2.        . الملريا   من شكل أقسى الطفيل هذا يسبب المنجلية المتصورة
كولر  يؤثر  3 للساق    مرض والثالث الثاني المشط آمون،  لاليسرى  علي عنخ لفقد نتيجة توت

لذلك      العظم  ونتيجة الدم، إمدادات نسيج  مؤقتا العظم  العظام تتدهور وتخلل
 .( هذا  النخر( . يسبب التهابات    حالة لنه       في تقصيره تم اليسري القدم من الثاني الصبع

.   إلي فتقر ي هذين   تسببت الوسطى في  السلمية اليمنى     الحالتين القدم في إضافية تحميل
القدم     مشط غي تسطيح ).مسببة عرجاء(  قدم

الشكلهذا  
اختتم        الذي آمون عنخ توت عائلة شجرة قبل من  تبين

     " فبراير"     في نشرت التي ، آمون عنخ توت السرة .2010مشروع
من                وتزوج اخناتون وانجبوا الثالث امنحتب من تي وتزوجت تي وانجبوا تويا من تزوج يويا بإيجاز

متوفيين              رضيعين وانجبوا زوجة من وتزوج امون عنخ توت وانجبوا اسمها معروف غير زوجة
قبرالاكتشاف 

نائية       منطقة في قبر اكتشاف ( تدعي تم أو   الملوك الضفة)  KVوادي القصر   في لمدينة الغربية
 ،720. قبر    القاهرة جنوب رقم   ل هكم عظيمة      . KV 62 يحمل كنوز هناك كانت القبر داخل

كان  لمدة    ت تقيمة الرض تحت .   3300رقد قبل  من الكشف وتم الرجال   سنة من اثنين
كارت:   هوارد رعاية  البريطانيين تحت عام    ر في كارنارفون نذكر.    1922اللورد أن أيضا علينا ولكن

المريكي    الثار إسمه   عالم وكان منذ   الخر ديفيز، تحمل    أن تيودور التي المواد أيضا اكتشف
      . في     مهتم محام الصل في وكان آمون عنخ توت الملك الحفريات    اسم يرعى وكان الحفريات

منطقة   في الملك   الثرية من.    1914-1902وادي كبير عدد اكتشف
.( الملكة       (   تاي آباء وتويا يويا مقبرة ذلك في بما المقابر

عام    إكتشف   في ايرتون اسم    1906مساعده عليها منقوش .   كوب عام   في آمون عنخ توت
وهي       1907 صغيرة حفرة في السفن بعض اكتشف باسم   ، التي  KV 54المعروفة السفن ،بعض
اسم  بعض        تحمل أيضا الحفرة وشملت آمون، عنخ الجنائزية  توت الولئم ايرتون،. أدوات بعد

في        اكتشف الذي آخر مساعد ديفيز تيودور استأجر
صغير   1908 . حيثقبر واحد      الذهب رقائق من قطع عنخ     اكتشف لتوت الصيد سهم تمثل ه
والخر  .  أمون لهذا،اقن     ونتيجة آي اسم عليها هذا    ديفيز عمنقوش أن توت    نفسه قبر هو القبر

  . عام  في آمون يشعر   1912عنخ استنفدت    بكان قد المنطقة من    أن المزيد إلي حاجة ول
وجد    الحفريات . ما أرسل انه مسؤول      هحتى كان الذي ينلوك السيد المصرية عن  إلى المعدات

نيو      في للفنون متروبوليتان متحف في
قبر.         هناك أن يقين على ينلوك كان لم       يخص نيويورك لكنه الملوك، وادي في آمون عنخ توت

ذلك،  .يعلن القبر          إكتشاف حتي كارتر هوارد مع فقط كارنارفون   وتواصل اللورد غني كان رجل
عام    جاء  في مصر أطباؤه  ، 1903إلى نصحه دافئ      حيث بلد في الشتاء فصل مناسبة لقضاء

 . الحساسة    الصحية لحالته .  تماما ذلك      ومع كهواية المصريات علم في إهتمامه يكن وطور لم
وتعاون  عام     خبيرا، كارتر هوارد .1907مع لعمله      ممول الى احتاج الذي إلى    ، كارتر هوارد جاء

عام    في وكان 18 عمرفي  1891مصر ،       . ودير  حسن بني في يعمل كان رسام يعمل
Bersha ,      عام في بعام ذلك بعد حيث     1892ثم العمارنة تل إلى فلندرز بإلتقي  انتقل السير

الولى       تجربته له قدم الذي عام.         كمنقببيتري في البحري الدير إلى ذهب ذلك ،1893بعد
كان  بعض   حيث . الصور نسخ في       حتشبسوت الملكة معبد جدران على تعيينه   1900من تم

 . في       مصر صعيد في الثار مفتش منصب التاريخ  في بأول   هذا كان   قام عندما مهم اكتشاف
طريقه  سقطت  , في الدفن         للمنزل إلى مدخل إلى تحولت والتي حفرة في جواده ساق

الثاني      منتوحتب قبر هو وهذا .  ,القديمة، البحري      دير في رع حبت كبير  نب بحث ودعا متوقعا



ولكن        حديثا، المكتشفة المقبرة افتتاح في هامة السفن      شخصيات بعض فقط وجد فتحه عندما
للملك  .   وتمثال هذا         وكان المصري المتحف في حاليا عرضه يتم الذي الثاني أمل  منتوحتب خيبة

        . ينبغي  أنه المستقبل في يتم أن قرر لذلك لهم الولي       كبيرة المرة في إكتشافه من يتحقق أن
كبار      من أي دعوة في  قبل إلي   1902عام الشخصيات يعمل    إنضم كان الذي ديفيس ثيودور

وادي  .   في عام  في ثم إلى    1904الملوك نقله إضطر      تم ولكنه سقارة في للعمل مصر صعيد
الستقالة   إلي

أنه    بينه  حيث مشكلة دبلوماسية         وقعت مشكلة في تسببت والتي الفرنسين الناس بعض وبين
والفرنسي     النجليزي الشعب العمل     إضطر حتى بين إلى وعاد الستقالة إلى صعيد في  كارتر

عام    في لنا     1905مصر بالنسبة محظوظا كان الوقت    لنهالذي ذلك في  في الحفر  بدأ أعمال
   . كارتر       هوارد انضم آمون عنخ توت الملك مقبرة عن عام    لللوردللبحث في 1907كارنارفون

في    وبدأوا الحفر ولكن        في المواقع من وغيرها البحري دير النجا، أبو يتمكنوا   دراع لم للسف
عام             من  في الملوك وادي في حفر أخذواامتياز حتى للقبر أثر أي على وكان. 1914العثور
توقف  العمل الولى،     قد العالمية الحرب الكبير     بسبب بالكتشاف يقوموا لم شتاء وأنهم حتى
كارنارفون    1922 اللورد أبلغ .عندما ذرعا          ضاق لنه الحفر وقف في رغبته عن وكانكارتر

 . النادرة         الفنية والعمال الكتب جمع هواة أحد كارنارفون منه   اللورد كارتر يعطيه طلب أن
هناك         أن من يقين على كان لنه أخرى رمسيس       فرصة قبر سفح عند وادي في منطقة

هناك   حيث قبل         السادس من تستخدم كانت التي الحجرية الكواخ القديمة  بعض المقابر بناه
. حفرها    يتم لم .    التي الحفريات   كارتر هوارد واصل كارنارفون وافق أزال نوفمبر 4 وفي لذلك

في          خطوة على جاءوا ثم الحجرية الكواخ تلك من طريق.      العديد عن فعل حدث هذا لساس
استخدموا      الذين الفتيان من واحد ) الصدفة الماء   (  صبي الشرب مياه صغير   ثلجلب ثقب حفر م

الماء      حاوية إصلح أجل وجد   من وعندما أبلغ   ، الولي . الخطوة كارتر  ال  هوارد حفركشف
عن   حتى    الكثير كشفت أخرى .خطوات عشر     إثني كان عددهم كارتر "عمل إن طوال "عمال

الرمال     تنظيف في المطاف     اليوم نهاية في . عثرواحتى أرسل     ومختوم مسدود مدخل على
كارتر  كارنارفون       هوارد لللورد برقية ذلك هناك      بعد بأن يخبره انجلترا في كان اكتشاف الذي

    . كارنارفون   اللورد وصل الوادي في في    مصر إلي رائع ابنته . 23برفقة 26في نوفمبر 
حفر  في     نوفمبر ثقب كارتر من  هوارد السليم إلى    الجدار يؤدي الذي ويحملالردهة  المدخل

واحدة    بيد داخل شمعة اجل  ال ووضعها من بداخلها     حفرة ما يري رؤية    أن من يتمكن لم لكنه
شيء  تؤمض          أي الشمعة جعل مما المقبرة من يخرج الساخن الهواء ولكن  لن تومض

الظلم    عندما علي عينيه إعتادت
الظلم     على اعتاد مسرورا عينيه .كان شاهده   : "   سأل لما شيء   أي ترى هل بقلق كارنارفون

!"أجاب كارتر؟"   " : رائعة  أشياء النتظار.      كارتر لغرفة الرسمي الفتتاح انتظار وكان لغرفة
في   كان      1922نوفمبر 29وملحق الدفن لحجرة الرسمي الفتتاح لكن .1923فبراير  17 في  ،

منه   . 10نحو  إستغرقت المقبرة    لتطهير أشهر
نفسها   المقبرة
رقم    يحمل الملوك    (62وهو وادي صغيرة).   KV 62في مقبرة داخل   وهي في محفورة

الوادي  وربما أسفل ل    ، البداية في .بنيت آي   الكهنة مدخل  ال مدخل  يتكون رئيس 16درج
ممر    إلى نزول خطوات

إلى          يؤدي انتظار وغرفة انتظار غرفة إلى يؤدي الممر وهذا
لللدفن         الشرقي الجانب يقود بينما الشمالي الطرف في وملحق

. الشرقي           الجانب على الخزانة وزارة إلى بدوره يؤدي الذي المر غرفة،
هي   الدفن المزينة   حجرة الوحيدة .الغرفة القبر   في

و          البعض، بعضها فوق مكتظة كانت هناك شيء كل بسبب     وجدت فراغ كل سيتخدم بسببكان
مما     للملك، المفاجئة أدوات           الوفاة حتي كبيرة بسرعة شئ كل تضع أن الناس وضع في تسبب

وضع    اليومية شيء   الناس الحياة كل اليومية       لوضع الحياة المعدات حتى كبيرة وضعت بسرعة
الجنائزي   الثاث .أيضا.  مع كله        القبر لتزيين وقت هناك يكن تزيين  لم تم الدفن  وقد حجرة

المتوفي     الملك لن كل    فقط إلى حاجة جدران  التعاويذالمصورة في جثمانه  على من القريبة
. الخر    العالم في كبيرة،   دهنت وقد لحمايته بسرعة السبب.  القبر وأغلقالجدران لهذا بسرعة

افتتح  الدفن،   تعندما لن     حجرة بالفطريات مغطاه الجدران لدي  لم  الدهاناتكانت هايكن
تماما   لتجف تسبب      ،وهذاالوقت التي السباب من واحدة وفاة   تربما بعد الفي الكتشاف شخص

الفراعنة      لعنة بسبب قيل كما علي          وليس الموت سيأتيه الملك بطمأنينة يخل من كل
. سريعة  مجرد "    "أجنحة كانت الكلمات هذه !تعويذه ولكن ؟    ل أو ،

الحداث    بعض بإ       أثارت تتعلق التي المشهورة الفراعنة بلعنة يسمي عنخ   ما توت مقبرة فتتاح
آمون:

كارتر    •  كناري الكوبرا الكتشاف  أكلت يوم
بعد      كانت •  بعوضة، لدغة نتيجة كارنارفون اللورد .خده  شق  وفاة الحلقة  رحالجوأصبح  أثناء
.املوث

زاروا•         الذين الخرين من العديد ذلك، ساعد  الومع أو ,   على واقبر طويلة  حياه عاشوا إكتشافه
من.     وصحية أن الدراسة موجودين   58وأظهرت كانوا فتح  عندما شخصا توفي  تم والتابوت، القبر

   . الخرين     كل كان سنوات عشر في فقط يزال  ثمانية هوارد       ونل ذلك في بما الحياة، قيد على
لحق      وقت في توفي الذي الليمفاوية   بسبب كارتر، الغدد سن   سرطان عام   64في 1939في



السطو
أن    العلماء السارقين     قبر الويعتقد من اثنين من التي تضضر اسرة    ، عهد في 20أو   19حدث

لنه      جدا، مبكر وقت علمات  كانفي اليسارية      علي هناك الزاوية أعلى في الغلق إعادة
اكتشف.   للمبني ما إلى    اللصوص سرعان الممر الجيري   ب العليوامتل الحجر إغلق شظايا وأعاد

. ثانية   مرة علي  اقتصرالقبر الول حين  الو النتظارغرفة  السارق في كان   ملحق الثاني السارق
خلل  تسلل حيث  شامل من الردهة  اللصوص دخلوا   ممر المرة وهذه ووصلوا   ، الممتلئة المقبرة

البعيد    الملك ضريح والعطور        تمكن.  إلي المراهم مع المجوهرات بعض سرقة من ،اللصوص
في  التي الجلدية،   دخلت لم  الحقائب أنهم من      واينجح حيث الحجرية الوعية على الحصول في

بعض.     ال رؤية الممكن من مع   القبر السفن على بصمات
المراهم   .ةحافعلي  ،المسروقةآثار الحاويات   بعض

: آمون    عنخ توت دفن
آمون     عنخ توت تابوت ,  هناك  ,حول واحدة  أضرحة حماية من الخري داخل  أربع أجل

بعد.   البعيدة  المومياء أنه      المقبرة حتى تماما سليما شيء كل المجوهرات إلى يصلوالم  مبقي
من         كنوع مومياء على مباشرة وضعها تم التي أستخدمت      الثمينة، المجوهرات أن حيث الحماية

      . مؤمياء  وضع تم للحماية تابوت       كمجوهرات في الصل في آمون عنخ .توت أكفان  وثلثة
الكوارتز        تابوت في يوضع أن عليه قبره     كان في الدفن حجرة في الخيرة  توأكد. البعيد النباء

.المومياء أن قريبة          زجاجية عرض شاشة إلي التابوت داخل من درجة   معإنتقلت في التحكم
المومياء     الالحرارة  أن من للتأكد في تدقيقة شوهدت     بقى أن بعد ممتازة التعفن علمات حالة

قبل  . من المصريات  علماء
الجنائزية   هي الحاويات :الربعة
1. القبر-         في الموقع في تزال ل الكوارتزيت، تابوت
خشبي  - 2 مذهب    نعش النسان لشبيه
النسان  خشبي نعش -  3 مع  لشبيه الكريمة  الحجار  مرصع الذهب   شبه بأوراق ومغطاة

السميكة.
الداخلي   نعش- 4 النسان الخالص     (شبيه الذهب من الذهب  110مصنوع من كغم

المحنط         الخالص) الملك وجه يغطي الذي الذهبي القناع هناك كان الكلي   وأخيرا 11 بالوزن
. النقي     الخالص الذهب من كيلوغراما



المقبرة       في الموجودة المقتنيات الصورة توضح
A_ الدرج مدخل

الردهة  ب
النتظار   غرفة ج
الدفن   غرفة د

الخزانة  ي
ملحق  ف

دينية             أشياء ذهبي وقناع خمر وكؤوس حربية عجلت من الموجودة المقتنيات الصورة توضح
جندي   ملبس . يذهب المعركة   معاصر عندما ساحة حول     ، إلي معداتهم تحمل هي أو هو

فقط  للنجاة       أجسادهم، حاجة في معقول شئ القدماء،.     كل المصريين فراعنة توفي عندما
السفلي     العالم إلي ذهبوا . وبالمثل الحياة        قيد على والبقاء المعدات من مجموعة مع
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King Tutankhamun 
 
 

Introduction 
 

This book written And collected by author of Egy King blog, He 
summarizes the life story of King Tutankhamun, family percentage 

and the latest theories that support percentage in addition to 
talking about his tomb and its discovery also the treasures of 

Tutankhamun's tomb . 
 
 

http://egy-king.blogspot.com 
 
 

The 18th dynasty was one of the most powerful royal houses of ancient 
Egypt. The late 18th dynasty, which included the reign of Akhenaten and 
Tutankhamun was an extraordinary and mysterious time. The recent 
identification of a number of royal mummies from this era, the exact 
relationships between some members of the royal family and possible 
illnesses and causes of death have been matters of debate.  
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Akhenaten, who ruled from 1351-1334 B.C. is considered one of the most 
controversial of the Egyptian Pharaohs because of his attempts to 
transform the traditional religion of his ancestors which lasted for a great 
number of years and that reflected all facets of society and caused great 
turmoil. As for Tutankhamun, he is probably the most famous of all 
Egyptian Pharaohs and this has nothing to do with any historical 
importance but is due to the treasures that were found inside his tomb that 
had been discovered almost intact. 
 
Titles and Names 
 
We are going to study three of the titles and names of Tutankhamun: 
 

1. The Birth Name (sA ra): twt-ankh-imn HkA iwn rsyt 
or Sma “The living image of Amon, Ruler of Southern Heliopolis 
(meaning Thebes)”. Earlier variant: twt-ankh-itn “The living image 
of Aten” 
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2. The Coronation Name (Niswt bity): Nb-xprw-Re “Lord of the 
forms (existences) of Re. 

 
 

 
 
 

3. The Horus Name (Hr): kA-nxt  tut-mswt, "Strong bull, 
fitting of created forms" or “Strong bull, the image is born” 

 
 

 
 
 
Historical Background 

 
Tutankhamun was one of the last kings of 18th dynasty. He 

ascended the throne at a very young age at about nine years old and ruled 
for almost nine or ten years. He followed Akhenaton to the throne, as his 
right to the throne was established through the marriage with princess 
Ankhesenpaaten (third daughter of King Akhenaten and queen 
Nefertiti).  

 
At the beginning of his reign, he lived in the royal palace at Tell el 

Amarna (for only three years) under the care of the royal nurses; the 
tomb of his royal wet-nurse was discovered recently at Saqqara. He was 
probably brought up together with his wife-to-be Ankhesenpaaten; they 
could have taken lessons together from the same teachers and scribes 
giving them instructions about the new religion of Aton.  

 
 Either before or immediately after the king ascended the throne, he 
came under the influence and authority of the priests of Amon especially 
Ay and returned to the cult of Amon. He also left El Amarna, and the 
court was moved to Memphis as a transitional stage since Thebes was 
full of anger because of the new religion of Aton. Also from Memphis, it 
was easier to mount expeditions and control military operations in Asia 
Minor against the rising power of the Hittites.  
 
 Later on, he moved to Thebes and changed his name from 
Tutankhaten to Tutankhamun and the name of his wife name changed to 
Ankhesenamun. He also returned to the main burial place of the New 
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kingdom kings at the Valley of the Kings by burying some funerary 
equipments of Amarna royalty in KV 55 in which the tomb sealing prove 
that the one who made these deposits is Tutankhamun. At Thebes also, he 
erected the Restoration Stela, which was found at the Hypostyle Hall at 
Karnak upon which he mentioned that he restored the stability in the 
country and returned to the cult of Amon and the other deities who had 
been neglected during the time of Akhenaton and he reopened temples 
and made restoration works there, also he participated in festivals such as 
the Opet festival as illustrated on the walls of the Colonnade of Luxor 
Temple.  
 
 During his reign there were two powerful characters:  
 

1)  Hor-m-heb who was an army general; he was a very strong 
military man. 

2) Ay who was a high priest of Amon.  
 

 They were the two persons who actually ruled the country from 
behind the scenes especially when the king was a child. Throughout out 
the reign of Tutankhamun, the administration of Egypt’s affairs was in 
the hands of Ay who was the head of the government and his vizier. 
 
Marriage 
 

He was married to the third daughter of Akhenaton her name was 
Ankh-es-en-pa-itn which means (she who lives for the Aten) and she 
changed her name like her husband to ankh-es-en-imn after the 
revolution happened. They married at an early age, perhaps for reasons of 
state (to acquire the right to ascend the throne) or because they loved each 
other as the love and affection was displayed in some scenes on the 
artifacts found in the tomb, e.g. the queen is frequently shown presenting 
the king with garlands of flowers or helping him while hunting by passing 
him an arrow.  
  
We believe that Ankhesenpaaten was older then Tutankhamun because 
she was probably of childbearing age as she bore him no children except 
for two still-born (premature) female children who died as foetuses of 6 
and 7 months’ gestation. Their mummies were discovered at the tomb.  
 

After his death she didn't want to marry any of his followers so she 
sent a letter, which is recorded as one of the examples of the Amarna 
letters, to the Hittite king asking him to send a prince to marry her. He 
was not sure of such a strange request but he sent a prince to see what 
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was happening. Unfortunately, the prince got murdered on his way to 
Egypt, probably by the followers of Horemheb and Ay. 
 
Ankhesenamun ended up marrying Ay, which was one of the things that 
Ay had done to prove his right to ascend the throne.  
 
Another act that Ay has done to legitimise his ascent to the throne was 
that he represented himself on the walls of the burial chamber of the tomb 
of Tutankhamun performing the opening of the mouth ceremony, which 
was normally done by the successor or the son of the deceased king. 
 
 
Parentage 

Amarna Relief: We are certain that Tutankhamun was a son of a king 
and we know that from a text on a block from one of the destroyed 
buildings of Akhenaton, Tutankahmun is described as the son of the king 
from his divine body, but unfortunately the name of the king wasn't 
recorded. But because this block came from one of the buildings of 
Akhenaton, this strengthened the assumption that Akhenaton is his father.  

Before 2010, there were several theories about the parentage of 
Tutankhamun and these will be discussed below:  

1-   He may be the son of Amenhotep III and queen Ty. 

The agreement: 

A lion statue was discovered in Soleb near Sudan (now displayed at the 
British Museum), bears inscriptions which claim that Tutankhamun is the 
son of Amenhotep III. However, it should be kept in mind that 
grandchildren receive much love and attention from their grandparents 
and they might call them “father” and “mother”, so the word 'son' may be 
out of respect and love of Tutankhamun to his grandfather. 

The disagreement: 
(a) after Amenhotep III death "Akhenaton" ruled for 18 years, but when 
Tutankhamun became  king he was only 9 years old, so it’s not possible.  
(b) the age of queen Ty at the time of giving birth to Tutankhamun would 
have been over 50 years old which is quite an old age for a woman to 
give birth. 
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 2- There was a certain relationship between Tutankhamun and the 
remains of the mummy found in the anthropoid coffin in KV 55 as when 
they were both examined in 1968 at Liverpool University, it was found 
that both possess the same blood group and the same defects in the bone 
structure of the skull. 

3- The most probable theory is that Tutankhamun was the son of 
"Akhenaton" from Kiya (?). 

The agreement: 

(a) Amarna scene: we found at the royal tomb at El Amarna a scene that 
represents a lady on her death bed, and when they compared her features 
she seemed to be kiya, and next to her there is a royal fan-bearer and a 
royal nurse carrying a baby who was most probably the king-to-be 
"Tutankhamun".  

(b) one of the titles of  Kiya was "the greatly beloved wife of the king" 
may be because she gave him a son after 6 daughters (from Nefertiti) 
which was much appreciated in ancient Egypt. 

(c) The Amarna Relief (mentioned earlier) is a strong proof. 

(d) 2010 investigation proved that he was the son of Akhenaten, who is 
now confirmed to be the body from KV 55. (This will be explained later). 

Thus we were not certain of anything and we needed the new technology 
to determine the familial relationships and to search for any diseases or 
inherited disorders.  

Death 
 
There are different theories concerning his death:  
 
We used to believe that he died as a result of a blow to his head because 
there was a big hole at the back of his skull, but because Tutankhamon 
didn't make any military activities this idea was not widely accepted.  
 
There was another theory that he died of Tuberculosis (chest disease) 
but after examination of the mummy, this idea was denied.  
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Also there was a theory about his death because of a brain tumour, 
because the cavity around his brain was relatively big, but this also was 
denied. 
  
A CT scan performed in 2005 by a group of scientist led by professor 
Zahi Hawass on the whole mummy revealed the following: 
  

1- The hole in the head didn't cause his death because the Egyptian 
scientists concluded that the hole was created post-mortem (after 
his death) in order to insert mummification liquid or maybe the 
workers of Howard Carter when trying to remove the heavily glued 
mask from his head thus causing this type of injury. (It was glued 
by means of resin) 

2- There was another injury in his left leg (thigh). This has probably 
contributed to his death, it happened because of a fall from a big 
height when he was riding his chariot (probably while hunting). 
The wound got infected and didn’t heal properly causing gangrene, 
which resulted in his death. 

3- His height was about 170 cm. 
 
Recent investigations 2010: 
 
In February 2010 the results of a study1 conducted on the DNA of the 
family of Tutankhamun were revealed. This project was called 
“Tutankhamun family project”, and it lasted for two years from Sept 2007 
till Oct. 2009. The study was conducted through the Egyptian Mummy 
Project (EMP) headed by Dr. Zahi Hawass, Secretary General of the 
Supreme Council of Antiquities, and a team composed of Egyptian 
scientists from the National Research Center, members from the Faculty 
of Medicine at Cairo University, and two German DNA specialists. 
 
11 royal mummies of the family of Tutankhamun were studied using 
radiology and DNA technology. These mummies came from KV 35, 55, 
62 and 21A and B. (Only three of these mummies’ identities were certain: 
Yuya, Thuya and Amenhotep III, in addition to the mummy of Tut). 

They concluded that: 

                                                 
1 The study was conducted inside two DNA laboratories which are under the supervision of the 
Supreme Council of Antiquities; one is located in the basement of the Cairo Museum, and another is in 
the Faculty of Medicine at Cairo University. These are the only two DNA laboratories exclusively 
aimed at the study of ancient mummies. These findings have been published by JAMA, the Journal of 
the American Medical Association, in their February 17, 2010, edition (Volume 303, no. 7). 
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- Yuya and Thuya were identified as great-grandparents of 
Tutankhamun and Amenhotep III 

- Amenhotep III and KV 35 Elder Lady (Ty) as his grandparents 

- KV 55 male (Akhenaten) and KV 35 Younger Lady are his sibling 
parents. 

- Amenhotep III could be clearly identified as father of KV 55 male 
(Akhenaten) and the testing of Amenhotep III as father of 
Tutankhamun was negative. 

SO the results showed that the mummy of KV 55 is the son of 
Amenhotep III and father of Tutankhamun leading to the 
assumption that KV 55 male can be certainly identified as 
Akhenaten. Also KV 35 Elder Lady was identified as daughter of 
Yuya and Thuya indicating that she could be queen Ty. 

Ø To sum up: 
 
1.Concerning his Parentage: 
 
Recent evidence, however, has indicated that he was in fact born in Tell 
el-Amarna. It had been revealed that Tutankhamun’s father was the 
“heretic” king, Akhenaten, whose body is now almost certainly identified 
with the mummy from KV 55 in the Valley of the Kings. His mother, 
who still cannot be identified by name, is the “Younger Lady” buried in 
the tomb of Amenhotep II (KV 35). The mummy of the “Elder Lady” 
from the same tomb can now be conclusively identified as 
Tutankhamun’s grandmother, Queen Ty.  
 
The project is not yet able to identify Tutankhamun’s mother by name, 
although the DNA studies also show that she was the daughter of 
Amenhotep III and Ty and thus Akhenaten’s full sister. Thus 
Tutankhamun’s only grandparents, on both his paternal and maternal 
sides, were Amenhotep III and Ty. 
 
2.Concerning his Wife: 
 
Two stillborn foetuses were found mummified and hidden away in a 
chamber of Tutankhamun’s tomb. Preliminary DNA analysis supports the 
Egyptological belief that these were children of the young king’s. This 
analysis has also suggested a mummy known as KV21A, a royal female 
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whose identity was previously completely unknown, as the most likely 
mother of these children and thus as Tutankhamun’s wife. As 
Tutankhamun’s only known consort was Ankhsenamun, the daughter of 
Akhenaten and his chief queen Nefertiti, further study of this mummy 
should help to illuminate further the complex relationships within this 
family. 
 
3.Concerning his Death: 
 
 
New light was shed on the cause of death for Tutankhamun with the 
discovery of DNA from the parasite that causes malaria2; it is likely that 
the young king died from complications resulting from a severe form of 
this disease. 
 
Medicinal foodstuffs (i.e., drugs to fight fever and pain) found within the 
tomb support the team’s contention that the young king suffered from a 
severe malarial infection. The CT scan also revealed that the king had a 
lame foot, caused by avascular bone necrosis (a disease known as 
Kohler disease, affecting the blood supply of the bone leading to 
degeneration of the bone)3. This conclusion is supported Egyptologically 
by the presence of over one hundred walking sticks in the tomb and by 
images of the king performing activities such as hunting while seated.  
 
The project believes that Tutankhamun’s death was most likely a result of 
the malaria coupled with his generally weak constitution. The CT scan of 
the pharaoh earlier confirmed the presence of an unhealed break in the 
king’s left thigh bone; the team speculates that the king’s weakened state 
may have led to a fall, or that a fall weakened his already fragile physical 
condition. 
 
 

                                                 
2 Plasmodium Falciparum. This parasite causes the most severe form of Malaria. 
3 Kohler disease affected the 2nd and 3rd metatarsals of Tutankhamun’s left leg, as a result the bone 
temporarily loses its blood supply and as a result the tissue in the bone dies and bone collapses 
(necrosis). This caused an inflammatory condition. Also the 2nd toe of the left foot is shortened because 
it lacks the middle phalanx. These two conditions caused an additional load to the right foot causing 
flattening of the foot arch (lame foot). 
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This is a figure showing the family tree of Tutankhamun as concluded by 
the “Tutankhamun Family Project”, published in Feb 2010. 
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Discovery of the tomb 
 
The tomb was discovered in a remote area called the Valley of the Kings 
(or KV) at the western bank of Luxor, about 720 km south of Cairo. His 
tomb carried no KV 62. Inside the tomb there were treasures of a great 
value that had been lying under the ground for about 3300 years.  
 
It was uncovered by two British men: Howard Carter –under the 
sponsorship of Lord Carnarvon in 1922.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
However we should also mention another American archaeologist his 
name was Theodore Davis, since he also discovered items bearing the 
name of King Tutankhamon. He was originally a lawyer interested in 
excavations and he was sponsoring archaeological digs in the area of the 
Valley of the King from 1902-1914. He discovered a large number of 
tombs including the tomb of Yuya and Thuya (parents of queen Ty).  
 
His assistant Ayrton, discovered in 1906 a cup inscribed with the name of 
Tutankhamun. In 1907, he discovered some vessels in a small pit which is 
known as KV 54, some of the vessels were inscribed with the name of 
Tutankhamun, the pit also included some items of his funerary banquet. 
After Ayrton, Theodore Davies hired another assistant who discovered in 
1908 a small tomb in which he discovered pieces of gold foil; one of 
which has a representation of Tutankhamun shooting arrows and another 
one inscribed with the name of Ay. As a result of this, Davies convinced 
himself that this tomb is the tomb of Tutankhamun.  
 
In 1912 he felt that the area had been exhausted and needing no more 
excavations, so he sent what he found to Mr. Winlock who was in charge 
of the Egyptian equipment in the Metropolitan museum of Arts in New 
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York. Winlock was sure that there was a tomb which belonged to 
Tutankhamon in the Valley of the Kings, but he didn’t announce that and 
just communicated with Howard Carter till the discovery of the tomb. 
  

Lord Carnarvon was a rich man4 who came to Egypt in 1903, as 
he was advised by his doctors to spend the winter in a warm country 
perfectly suited to his delicate health. He developed an interest in 
Egyptology as a hobby. However, as he wasn’t an expert, he teamed up 
with Howard Carter in 1907, who needed a financier for his work.  
  
 
Howard Carter came to Egypt in 1891 at the age of 18 and he was 
working as a draughtsman. He worked in Beni Hassan and Deir el 
Bersha. Then a year later in 1892 he moved to Tell el Amarna where he 
met Sir Flinders Petrie who gave him his first experience as an 
excavator. After that he went to El Deir el Bahari in 1893, where he was 
copying some scenes off the walls of Queen Hatshepsut's temple.  In 
1900 he was appointed as inspector of the monuments of Upper Egypt. At 
this date he made his first important discovery when he was on his way 
home, the leg of his horse fell into a hole which turned out to be the 
entrance to an ancient burial, that is the tomb of Mentuhotep II 
Nebhepetre at Deir el Bahari. Expecting a major find, he invited 
important dignitaries to the opening of the newly discovered tomb, but 
when he opened it he just found some vessels and the statue of king 
Mentuhotep II that is now displayed at the Egyptian Museum; this was a 
great disappointment to them. So he decided that in the future he should 
check his discovery first before inviting any VIPs. 
 
 In 1902 he joined Theodore Davis who was working in the Valley of the 
Kings. Then in 1904 he was transferred to Lower Egypt working at 
Saqqara but he had to resign as a problem happened between him and 
some French people which caused a diplomatic problem between the 
English and French people so Carter had to resign and went back to work 
in Upper Egypt in 1905 which was lucky for us because at that time he 
began the excavations to search for the tomb of King Tutankhamon. 
 
 Howard Carter joined Lord Carnarvon in 1907 and they started 
digging in Draa Abu el-Naga, Deir El-Bahari and other sites but 
unfortunately they couldn’t find any trace of the tomb until they took the 
concession of digging in the Valley of the Kings in 1914. The work was 
interrupted because of the World War I and they didn’t make the major 

                                                 
4 Lord Carnarvon was a collector of rare books and works of art. 
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discovery until the winter of 1922 when Lord Carnarvon informed 
Carter of his desire to stop the excavation because he was fed up. Carter 
asked him to give him another chance because he was sure that there was 
an area in the valley at the foot of the tomb of Ramses VI where there 
were some stone huts, which were used by ancient tomb builders that has 
never been excavated. So Carnarvon agreed. 
 
Howard carter continued the excavations and by the 4th of November he 
had cleared several of those stone huts then they came upon a step in the 
bedrock. This actually happened by chance as one of the boys who used 
to bring the drinking water (water boy) was digging a small hole in order 
to fix the container of the water, when he found the 1st step and informed 
Howard carter. Further digging revealed other steps until they were 16 in 
number. The workers of Carter worked all day clearing sand until at last 
they found a blocked and sealed doorway. Howard Carter then sent a 
telegram to Lord Carnarvon who was in England telling him that there 
is a wonderful discovery in the valley. Lord Carnarvon arrived in Egypt 
accompanied by his daughter on 23rd of November. On 26th November 
Howard Carter made a hole in the intact wall of the doorway that lead to 
the antechamber and held a candle with one hand and put it inside the 
hole in order to see what was inside but he couldn’t see anything because 
the hot air escaping from the tomb caused the candle to flicker but when 
his eyes got used to the dark he was very pleased of what he saw. Lord 
Carnarvon asked anxiously: “Can you see anything Carter?” so Carter 
replied: “Wonderful things!” 
 
The official opening of the antechamber and the annexe was on 29th 
November 1922, but the official opening of the burial chamber was on 
17th February 1923. It took him about 10 months to completely clear the 
tomb. 
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The tomb itself  
 
It carries no 62 in the Valley of the Kings (KV 62). It is a small tomb it is 
cut down into the bedrock of the valley, probably been made initially for 
the high priest Ay.  
 
The entrance stairway consists of 16 steps going down to the Corridor 
and this corridor leads to the Antechamber and the antechamber leads to 
the Annexe at the northern end while the eastern side leads to the Burial 
Chamber, which leads in its turn to the Treasury on the eastern side. 
The burial chamber is the only decorated room in the tomb. 
 
Everything found there was crammed over each other, every space was 
used that is because of the king’s sudden death, which caused the people 
to put everything in very rapidly even the daily life equipments were put 
in together with the funerary equipment. Also there was no time to 
decorate the whole tomb. Only the burial chamber was decorated because 
the dead king would need all the spells depicted on the walls closer to his 
body for his protection in the afterlife.  

The walls were painted very quickly and the tomb was rapidly closed. 
That’s why when the burial chamber was opened, the walls were covered 
with fungus because the paints didn't have time to fully dry, and this 
maybe one of the reasons that caused people’s death after the discovery; 
not as was said because of the curse of the pharaohs. "Death will come on 
swift wings for those who will disturb the king" but these words were just 
a spell, or not?! 

Some events triggered the famous so-called “Curse of the Pharahs” 
related to the opening of the tomb of Tutankhamun: 

• Carter’s canary was eaten by a cobra on the day of discovery 

• Death of Lord Carnarvon as a result of a mosquito bite, after 
slashing his cheek while shaving and the wound became infected. 

• However, many others who visited the tomb or helped to discover 
it lived long and healthy lives. A study showed that of the 58 
people who were present when the tomb and sarcophagus were 
opened, only eight died within a dozen years. All the others were 
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still alive, including Howard Carter, who later died of lymphoma 
at the age of 64 in 1939 

Robberies 
 

Scholars believe that the tomb was affected by 2 robberies, which 
happened very early in the 19th or 20th dynasty, because there were signs 
of re-closure at the top left- hand corner of the blocking. The 
robberies were soon discovered and the corridor was filled up to the top 
with limestone chippings and the tomb was resealed. 
  
The 1st robbery was confined to the antechamber and the annexe while 
the 2nd robbery was more extensive where robbers burrowed through the 
corridor fill, this time they entered the entire tomb and reached up to the 
outermost shrine of the king. The thieves managed to steal some of the 
jewellery together with unguents and perfumes, which they poured in 
leather bags, as they couldn’t manage to get the stone vessels out of the 
tomb. Some fingerprints could still be seen on the vessels together with 
traces of the unguents robbed, on the rims of some of the containers.  

Tutankhamun’s Burial: 

Around the sarcophagus of Tutankhamun there are 4 shrines one inside 
the other in order to protect the mummy. After the outermost shrine 
everything remained completely intact so they didn't reach the precious 
jewellery, which were placed directly on the mummy as a kind of 
protection as jewellery was used as amulets for protection. 

Tutankhamun’s mummy was originally put in one sarcophagus and three 
coffins. It used to be kept in the outermost quartzite sarcophagus in the 
burial chamber of his tomb. Recent news confirmed that the mummy was 
moved from inside the sarcophagus to a nearby glass showcase with very 
accurate temperature controls to make sure that the mummy stays in 
perfect condition after signs of decay have been observed by 
Egyptologists. 
 
The 4 funerary containers are: 
   

1- Quartzite sarcophagus, still in situ at the tomb. 
2- 1st gilded wooden anthropoid coffin 
3- 2nd gilded wooden anthropoid coffin wood inlayed with semi-

precious stones and covered with thick gold leaf. 
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4- The innermost anthropoid coffin which is made of pure gold (110 
Kg of solid gold)   

 
Finally there was the golden mask covering the face of the mummified 
king with a total weight of 11 kg of pure solid gold.  
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
When a modern soldier goes into the field, he or she carries along, packed 
about their bodies, just about every conceivable item they might need for 
survival. When ancient Egyptian pharaohs died, likewise, they went forth 
into the netherworld with a host of equipment and survival gear.  
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